
 

             AGENDA 
           ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 
 

June 6, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR  97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
5. PRESENTATIONS  

(a) Cameron Moore, Clatsop County Manager 
(b) Dr. Edward Harvey Historic Preservation Awards 
(c) Carbon Credits 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered 
separately.  Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City 
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) Boards and Commissions Minutes 

(1) Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting of 4/19/16 
(2) Library Board Meeting of 4/26/16 
(3) Planning Commission Meeting of 4/26/16 
(4) Planning Commission Work Session of 4/26/16 

(b) Renewal of Contract for Professional Services with ABC Transcription (City Manager) 
(c) Request by John Fenton for Tree Trimming Permit on City Property adjacent to 570 W. 

Lexington (Public Works) 
(d) Agreement for Telecommunication Service Audit (Finance) 
(e) Resolution Establishing Rules, Regulations, Rate Changes and Conditions for Solid 

Waste Service (Finance)  
 
7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.  
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized.  In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) Public Hearing and Resolution regarding Columbia Memorial Hospital Bonds (Finance) 
(b) Resolution to Elect to Receive State Shared Revenues (Finance) 
(c) Public Hearing and Resolution to Adopt the City of Astoria Budget for FYE June 30, 2017 

(Finance) 
 
 



 
 

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS (continued) 
(d) Liquor License Application from Erica Miltenberger for Oregon Lass, LLC, dba Workmans 

Irish Pub, Located at 218 W. Marine Drive, for a New Outlet for a Full On-Premises Sales 
Commercial Establishment License (Finance) 

(e) Authorization to Bid 2016 Paving Project (Public Works) 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(a) ORS 192.660(2)(f) – Exempt Public Records 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630  

BY CONTACTING JULIE YUILL, CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE, 503-325-5824 
 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
June 2, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 6, 2016 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Item 5(a): Cameron Moore, Clatsop County Manager 
 

Recently hired Clatsop County Manager Cameron Moore will introduce himself to 
the City Council.   

 
Item 5(b): Dr. Edward Harvey Historic Preservation Awards (Community Development) 
 

The City of Astoria Historic Landmarks Commission has selected the 2016 
recipient for the Dr. Edward Harvey Historic Preservation Award.  The award is 
presented each year to recognize a property owner(s) who have completed 
exterior restoration or beautification of a building which exemplifies the historical 
attributes of the building or the architectural heritage of Astoria.  This year there is 
one property owner who will be presented with a certificate in the residential 
category:  Laura A. Rogers for the restoration work that has been done at 3720 
Duane Street.  A framed certificate will be presented by the Mayor to the recipient 
at the June 6, 2016 Council meeting.   

 
Item 5(c): Carbon Credits 
 

Public Works Director Ken Cook will be introducing Sean Penrith, Executive 
Director of the Climate Trust, who will be presenting the City with a ceremonial 
check in the amount of $1,028,000 for the first of two purchases of carbon credits 
in the City’s watershed.  This money has already been deposited in the City’s 
Capital Improvement Fund.  In May of 2017, there will be another $1,028,000 
deposited with the City to complete the purchase of carbon credits.  Ken Cook 
will also be introducing the City’s consultant team, Mike Barnes, City Forester, 
and David Ford, Carbon Forester.   
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 6(a): Boards and Commissions Minutes 
 

The minutes of the (1) Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting of 4/19/16, (2) 
Library Board Meeting of 4/26/16, (3) Planning Commission Meeting of 4/26/16, 
and (4) Planning Commission Work Session of 4/26/16 are enclosed.  Unless 



Page 2 of 6 

there are any questions or comments regarding the contents of these minutes, 
they are presented for information only. 

 
Item 6(b): Renewal of Contract for Professional Services with ABC Transcription (City 

Manager) 
 

The City of Astoria has contracted with ABC Transcription Services, Inc., (ABC) 
since April 2010 for the transcription of meeting minutes for the City 
Council/ADC, Budget Committee, Planning Commission, Historic Landmarks 
Commission, Design Review Committee, Parks Board, Maritime Memorial 
Committee, Parks Master Plan Citizen Advisory Committee, and Library Board.  
The current contract expires on June 30, 2016.  After three years with minimal 
increases, ABC is proposing a $2.00 increase to their base transcription labor 
rate for the coming fiscal year.  The new rate essentially results in a $10 increase 
per meeting for the City.  A total of $ $25,000 ($18,660 for Fiscal Year 2015-16) is 
allocated as part of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget for these services.  This 
fee increase would be accommodated in the budgeted amount.  ABC has been 
both responsive and timely.  The draft contract has been reviewed and approved 
as to form by City Attorney Henningsgaard.  It is recommended that Council 
approve a Contract for Professional Services with ABC Transcription Services, 
Inc., for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.   

 
Item 6(c): Request by John Fenton for Tree Trimming Permit on City Property 

adjacent to 570 W. Lexington (Public Works) 
 

John Fenton, owner of the property at 570 W Lexington, submitted an application 
to trim trees on City property.  The City owned property is to the northwest of the 
applicant’s.  The trees proposed to be trimmed are maple and alder and it 
appears that the maple has been trimmed in the past.  The applicant will be hiring 
a tree cutting service to do the trimming.  The trees are located within a known 
slide area.  Most of these trees are young alders.  Since the trees are only being 
topped and not removed, a geologic report is not required.  Should Council 
approve this request, staff recommends the following conditions:  Applicant shall 
employ any erosion control measures required to stabilize all disturbed areas and 
assure that new growth is fully established and tree height reduction shall be no 
more than 25%.  Based on a site visit by City staff, it is recommended that the 
request to trim trees on City property be approved. 

 
Item 6(d): Agreement for Telecommunication Service Audit (Finance) 
 

The SpyGlass Group, LLC, reviews telecommunication invoicing to retroactively 
identify billing errors.  In addition, Spyglass utilizes proprietary software to 
analyze invoices to review dormant or underused services and identify potential 
cost savings opportunities through the use of market analysis, volume 
leveraging, consolidation and rate improvement.  Periodic review of these 
services is advisable and a no cost audit is a reasonable approach utilizing a 
party independent from the telecommunication providers.  The two-prong 
approach of retroactive review and savings opportunities will be of no additional 
expense to the City than would have been incurred without taking action.  The 
historical review of paid invoices may potentially produce a refund or credit if 



Page 3 of 6 

errors are identified in the City’s billings.  The refund or credit would be split on a 
50/50 basis with SpyGlass.  The analysis of existing rate plans, usage and 
leveraging will provide a review of potential savings opportunities.  Should the 
City decide to initiate changes, the first year of savings will be due to 
SpyGlass, and if the City does not pursue recommendations, nothing is due to 
SpyGlass.  The cities of Newport, Silverton, Stayton, and Sandy have utilized 
their services.  City Attorney Henningsgaard has reviewed and approved the 
attached Audit Agreement as to form.  It is recommended that Council approve 
the Audit Agreement with The SpyGlass Group, LLC. 

 
Item 6(e): Resolution Establishing Rules, Regulations, Rate Changes and Conditions 

for Solid Waste Service (Finance)  
 

The City's franchise agreement with Recology requires them to render financial 
statements and rate review of the Solid Waste Collection Franchise no later than 
April 30 each year.  The annual rate review was received April 1, 2016.  Staff 
concurs with the assessment and conclusions. The purpose of the annual rate 
review is to determine whether Recology's "Operating Ratio" for their solid waste 
collection and transfer station operations fall within the limits set by the 
Franchise Agreements with the City.  Fred Stemmler, Recology's Western 
Oregon General Manager, indicated the Operating Ratios for the current 
calendar year are projected to be within the limits of the Operating Ratio Range 
of 88% to 92%.  As a result, the collection and transfer station rates will remain 
the same for the coming year.  Recommended increases from Recology include 
increases to medical waste collection reflecting pass through of increased 
vendor costs and addition of a 20% surcharge for debris box/compactor haul 
fees to account for additional time required to provide service.  The debris 
box/compactor change will result in a nominal change to the overall charge for 
service, approximately 2%.  These updates are contained in Exhibit A of the 
attached resolution to be effective July 1, 2016.  It is recommended that Council 
consider the attached resolution with rate changes as indicated. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Item 7(a): Public Hearing and Resolution regarding Columbia Memorial Hospital 

Bonds (Finance) 
 

Columbia Lutheran Charities, dba Columbia Memorial Hospital (CMH), an 
Oregon nonprofit public benefit corporation and an organization described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue code of 1986 (the "Code"), has 
requested The Hospital Facilities Authority of the City of Astoria, Oregon (the 
"Authority") issue non-recourse revenue bonds for and on behalf of Columbia 
Memorial in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $ 20,000,000, and, on 
May 19, 2016, the Authority adopted a Bond Resolution approving such request.  
Section 147(f) of the Code requires qualified 501(c)(3) bonds be approved by the 
applicable elected representatives of the governmental unit issuing such bonds 
and the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the Project is 
located.  The Mayor and City Council of the City are the elected representatives; 
the Board of Directors of the Authority are not elected representatives. 

 



Page 4 of 6 

The principal and interest on the Bonds will not constitute a debt of the City of 
Astoria or the Authority, nor shall the Bonds be payable from a tax of any nature 
levied upon any property within the City of Astoria nor any other political 
subdivision of the State of Oregon.  The Bonds will be payable only from the 
revenues and resources of CMH.  The Oregon Revised Statues provide a 
municipality may establish a Hospital Facilities Authority (HFA) to oversee the 
development of hospital facilities within the city.  The City of Astoria has 
established such an authority to oversee the development of Columbia Memorial 
Hospital (CMH).  The HFA may issue bonds for hospital facilities but only after 
the City Council approves the bond issue. 

 
CMH is seeking approval for financing the following projects: i) capital 
construction, remodeling and equipping of facilities used to provide health care, 
including, without limitation, a cancer center, ii) funding a debt service reserve 
fund, if required, iii) financing the payment of interest on the Bonds during 
construction, and iv) certain costs relating to the issuance of the Bonds.  ORS 
441.565 states very clearly the obligations of the HFA and CMH are not the 
obligation of the municipality.  The statutes make it clear the debt is the debt of 
CMH and CMH is required to pay off the bonds.  Additionally, the attached 
resolution highlights the Bonds do not constitute a debt of the City and are 
payable by the Borrower (CMH).  The bond issues are in not an obligation of the 
City, are not debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City and the City's 
General Fund is in no way liable for any payment related to these bonds.  HFA is 
asking the Council to hold a hearing regarding issuance of the bonds.  If the 
hearing is without consequence, the HFA is requesting Council to approve the 
attached resolution.  This is a technical exercise required to satisfy the legal 
requirements for CMH to sell the bonds.  City Attorney Blair Henningsgaard has 
reviewed the attached materials as to form and concurs that the request is 
appropriate.  It is requested that Council hold a hearing regarding issuing the 
bonds and consider approval of the attached resolution authorizing the sale of 
bonds. 

 
Item 7(b): Resolution to Elect to Receive State Shared Revenues (Finance) 
 

Oregon Revised Statute 221.770 requires the City to adopt a resolution to 
declare its intent to receive state revenue for each new fiscal year.  State shared 
revenues include the state gas tax, alcohol tax, cigarette tax and state shared 
revenues.  The attached resolution expresses the City’s intention to receive state 
shared revenues for FY 2016-2017.  It is recommended that the City Council 
consider this resolution for adoption. 

 
Item 7(c): Public Hearing and Resolution to Adopt the City of Astoria Budget for FYE 

June 30, 2017 (Finance) 
 

Oregon Local Budget Law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing on 
the budget, as recommended for approval by the Budget Committee.  Notice of 
this hearing, scheduled for June 6, 2016, was published in the Daily Astorian on 
Wednesday, May 18, 2016.  The budget for the City of Astoria, as discussed and 
recommended for approval by the Budget Committee, is ready for the City 
Council to consider for adoption.  The changes from the proposed budget that 



Page 5 of 6 

the Budget Committee considered are as follows:  The Ending Fund Balance of 
the Capital Improvement Fund is reduced by $60,000 and the Capital Outlay – 
Machinery and Equipment is increased to recognize the additional cost for the 
Spur 14 Project brought before Council at the May 16, 2016 meeting.  The 
attached resolution will adopt resources and appropriations and authorize the 
collection of taxes at a rate of $8.1738 per thousand for FYE June 30, 2017.  It is 
recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing on the FYE June 30, 
2017 budget as recommended by the Budget Committee.  After the hearing, it is 
recommended that the Council consider the resolution to adopt this budget. 

 
Item 7(d): Liquor License Application from Erica Miltenberger for Oregon Lass, LLC, 

dba Workmans Irish Pub, Located at 218 W. Marine Drive, for a New Outlet 
for a Full On-Premises Sales Commercial Establishment License (Finance) 

 
A Liquor License Application has been filed by Erica Miltenberger for Oregon 
Lass LLC doing business as Workmans Irish Pub.  This Application is a New 
Outlet for a Full On-Premises Sales Commercial Establishment License.  The 
appropriate Departments have reviewed the Application.  A memo from the Police 
Department is attached along with the Application.  It is recommended that 
Council consider the request. 

 
Item 7(e): Authorization to Bid 2016 Paving Project (Public Works) 
 

The Public Works Department developed a list of the following streets to be 
included in the 2016 Paving Project.  These locations were chosen using input 
from the City’s pavement maintenance software, anticipated future project needs, 
stopgap maintenance obligations, field evaluation, and cost efficiency 
considerations. 

 
Road Description From To 
Exchange Street 14th Street 16th Street 

Duane Street 15th Street 16th Street 
13th Street Duane Street Exchange Street 

Bond Street 4th Street 6th Street 
W. Lexington Ave. 1st Street Sonora Ave. 

16th Street Niagara Ave. James Street 
Irving Ave. 11th Street 14th Street 
39th Street Franklin Ave. Grand Ave. 

Nimitz Road Kincaid Road Halsey Road 
 

The project includes asphalt pavement overlay, asphalt grinding, ADA ramp 
upgrades, road base reconstruction, striping and other associated improvements.  
The construction estimate for this project is $430,000, including a 10% 
contingency.  Funding for this project is available in the Astoria Road District 
Fund (Local Fuel Tax Fund).  At the City Council meeting, Assistant City Engineer 
Nathan Crater will provide additional background on pavement management and 
the areas to be paved.  It is recommended that City Council authorize staff to 
solicit bids for the 2016 Paving Project.   

 



Page 6 of 6 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item 9(a) ORS 192.660(2)(f) – Exempt Public Records 
 

The City Council will recess to executive session to consider information or 
records that are exempt by law from public inspection.   













































 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 
 

 
May 31, 2016 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ABC TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES, INC., CONTRACT RENEWAL 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Astoria has contracted with ABC Transcription Services, Inc., (ABC) since 
April 2010 for the transcription of meeting minutes for the City Council/ADC, Budget 
Committee, Planning Commission, Historic Landmarks Commission, Design Review 
Committee, Parks Board, Maritime Memorial Committee, Parks Master Plan Citizen 
Advisory Committee, and Library Board.  The current contract expires on June 30, 
2016.   
 
After three years with minimal increases, ABC is proposing a $2.00 increase to their 
base transcription labor rate for the coming fiscal year.  The new rate essentially results 
in a $10 increase per meeting for the City.  A total of $ $25,000 ($18,660 for Fiscal Year 
2015-16) is allocated as part of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget for these services.  
This fee increase would be accommodated in the budgeted amount.  ABC has been 
both responsive and timely.  The draft contract has been reviewed and approved as to 
form by City Attorney Henningsgaard. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council approve a Contract for Professional Services with ABC 
Transcription Services, Inc., for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.   
 

 



Page 1 of 7 

  
CITY OF ASTORIA 

 CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
 
This Contract, made and entered into this _______ day of June, 2016, by and between the City 
of Astoria, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called "CITY", and ABC 
Transcription Services, Inc., hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR", duly authorized to perform 
such services in Oregon. 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY requires services which CONTRACTOR is capable of providing, under 
terms and conditions hereinafter described; and  
 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is able and prepared to provide such services as CITY does 
hereinafter require, under those terms and conditions set forth; now, therefore, 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of those mutual promises and the terms and conditions set forth 
hereafter, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 
 A. CONTRACTOR shall perform transcription services for the City of Astoria as 

provided in the attached Exhibit A from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 
 
 B. Contractor’s services are defined solely by this Contract and not by any other 

contract or agreement that may be associated with this project. 
 
 C. CONTRACTOR’S services shall be performed as expeditiously as is consistent with 

professional skill and the orderly progress of work.   
 
2. COMPENSATION 
 
 A. CITY agrees to pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the schedule attached as 

Exhibit A for performance of those services provided herein;  
 
 B. CONTRACTOR will submit invoices for payment as follows: City Council/ADC, 

Budget Committee and Library Board to attention of Julie Yuill jyuill@astoria.or.us; 
Planning Commission,  Historic Landmarks Commission, and Design Review 
Committee to attention of Sherri Williams swilliams@astoria.or.us; and Parks Board, 
Maritime Memorial Committee, and Parks Master Plan Citizen Advisory Committee to 
attention of Terra Patterson tpatterson@astoria.or.us, or 1095 Duane Street, Astoria 
OR 97103.  

 
 C. CITY certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for expenditure to 

finance costs of this Contract. 



Page 2 of 7 

3. CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION 
 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the CITY the CONTRACTOR’S employer identification 
number, as designated by the Internal Revenue Service, or CONTRACTOR’S Social 
Security Number, as CITY deems applicable. 

 
4. CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE 
 

For purposes hereof, the CITY'S authorized representative will be Julie Yuill, Executive 
Secretary to the City Manager, City of Astoria, 1095 Duane Street, Astoria, Oregon, 
97103, (503) 325-5824, jyuill@astoria.or.us. 
 

5. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE 
 

For purposes hereof, the CONTRACTOR’S authorized representative will be Paula 
Pinyerd, President, ABC Transcription Services, Inc., 42340 NW Depot Street, Banks, 
Oregon 97106, (503) 324-0198, abc4transcription@yahoo.com.  

 
6. CITY'S OBLIGATIONS 
 

In order to facilitate the work of the CONTRACTOR as above outlined, the CITY shall 
furnish to the CONTRACTOR access to all relevant audio, exhibits, reports and site 
information which is in the City's possession concerning the project.   

 
7. CONTRACTOR IS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

A. CONTRACTOR shall be an independent CONTRACTOR for all purposes and shall 
be entitled to no compensation other that the compensation provided for under 
Section 2 of this Contract. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that for all purposes related to this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR is and shall be deemed to be an independent contractor and not an 
employee of the City, shall not be entitled to benefits of any kind to which an 
employee of the City is entitled and shall be solely responsible for all payments and 
taxes required by law; and furthermore in the event that CONTRACTOR is found by a 
court of law or an administrative agency to be an employee of the City for any 
purpose, City shall be entitled to offset compensation due, or, to demand repayment 
of any amounts paid to CONTRACTOR under the terms of the Contract, to the full 
extent of any benefits or other remuneration CONTRACTOR receives (from City or 
third party) as result of said finding and to the full extent of any payments that City is 
required to make (to CONTRACTOR or a third party) as a result of said finding. 

 
C. The undersigned CONTRACTOR hereby represents that no employee of the City of 

Astoria, or any partnership or corporation in which a City of Astoria employee has an 
interest, has or will receive any remuneration of any description from the 
CONTRACTOR, either directly or indirectly, in connection with the letting or 
performance of this Contract, except as specifically declared in writing. 

 



Page 3 of 7 

8. CANCELLATION FOR CAUSE 
 

CITY may cancel all or any part of this Contract if CONTRACTOR breaches any of  the 
terms herein or in the event of any of the following: Insolvency of CONTRACTOR; 
voluntary or involuntary petition in bankruptcy by or against CONTRACTOR; 
appointment of a receiver or trustee for CONTRACTOR, or any assignment for benefit of 
creditors of CONTRACTOR.  Damages for breach shall be those allowed by Oregon law, 
reasonable and necessary attorney's fees, and other costs of litigation at trial and upon 
appeal.  CONTRACTOR may likewise cancel all or any part of this contract if CITY 
breaches any of the terms herein and be therefore entitled to equivalent damages as 
expressed above for CITY. 

 
9. EARLY TERMINATION 

 
A. This Contract may be terminated without cause by mutual written consent of the 

parties.  In addition, the parties may agree to terminate the contract: 
 

1) If work under the Contract is suspended by an order of a public agency for any 
reason considered to be in the public interest other than by a labor dispute or by 
reason of any third party judicial proceeding relating to the work other than a suit 
or action filed in regard to a labor dispute; or 

 
2) If the circumstances or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a 

reasonable time to proceed with a substantial portion of the Contract. 
 
B. Payment of CONTRACTOR shall be prorated to and include the day of termination 

and shall be in full satisfaction of all claims by CONTRACTOR against CITY under 
this contract.  

 
C. Termination under any provision of this paragraph shall not affect any right, 

obligation, or liability of CONTRACTOR or CITY which accrued prior to such 
termination. 

 
D. If work is suspended under circumstances described in 9(1) but the contract is not 

terminated, the Contractor is entitled to a reasonable extension of time to complete 
the contract. 

 
10. ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 

CITY shall have access to such books, documents, papers and records of contract as 
are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audit, examination, 
excerpts and transcripts. 

 
11. FORCE MAJEURE 
 

Neither CITY nor CONTRACTOR shall be considered in default because of any delays in 
completion of responsibilities hereunder due to causes beyond the control and without 
fault or negligence on the part of the party so disenabled provided the party so 



Page 4 of 7 

disenabled shall within ten (10) days from the beginning such delay notify the other party 
in writing of the causes of delay and its probable extent.  Such notification shall not be 
the basis for a claim for additional compensation. 

 
12. NONWAIVER 
 

The failure of the CITY to insist upon or enforce strict performance by CONTRACTOR of 
any of the terms of this Contract or to exercise any rights hereunder shall not be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its right to assert or rely upon 
such terms or rights on any future occasion. 

13. ATTORNEY'S FEES 
 

In the event suit or action is instituted to enforce any of the terms of this contract, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party such sum as the court 
may adjudge reasonable as attorney's fees at trial or on appeal of such suit or action, in 
addition to all other sums provided by law. 

 
14. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

The law of the State of Oregon shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its 
interpretation and performance, and any other claims related to it. 
 

15. CONFLICT BETWEEN TERMS 
 

It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any 
conflict between the terms of this instrument and the proposal of the CONTRACTOR, this 
instrument shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the 
said terms of said proposal conflicting herewith. 

 
16. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

With regard to Comprehensive General Liability, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the City of Astoria, its Officers, and Employees against and from any 
and all loss, claims, actions, suits, reasonable defense costs, attorney fees and expenses 
for or on account of injury, bodily or otherwise to, or death of persons, damage to or 
destruction of property belonging to city, consultant, or others resulting from or arising out 
of CONTRACTOR negligent acts, errors or omissions in services pursuant to this 
Agreement. This agreement to indemnify applies whether such claims are meritorious or 
not; provided, however, that if any such liability, settlements, loss, defense costs or 
expenses result from the concurrent negligence of CONTRACTOR and The City of 
Astoria this indemnification and agreement to assume defense costs applies only to the 
extent of the negligence or alleged negligence of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
With regard to Professional Liability, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the City of Astoria, its Officers and Employees from any and all liability, 
settlements, loss, reasonable defense costs, attorney fees and expenses arising out of 
CONTRACTOR ‘S negligent acts, errors or omissions in service provided pursuant to this 
Agreement; provided, however, that if any such liability, settlements, loss, defense costs 



Page 5 of 7 

or expenses result from the concurrent negligence of CONTRACTOR and the Client, this 
indemnification and agreement to assume defense costs applies only to the extent of 
negligence of CONTRACTOR. 

 
With respect to Commercial Liability and Professional Liability, CONTRACTOR reserves 
the right to approve the choice of counsel. 

 
17. INSURANCE 
 

Prior to starting work hereunder, CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR’S cost, shall secure 
and continue to carry during the term of this contract, with an insurance company 
acceptable to CITY, the following insurance: 

 
A. Professional Liability Insurance.  The CONTRACTOR shall have in force a policy of 

Professional Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000.  The 
CONTRACTOR shall keep such policy in force and current during the term of this 
contract. 

 
B. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and 

maintain comprehensive general liability insurance, including auto, against any and 
all claims for damages to persons or property which may arise out of his operations 
under this agreement.  Insurance shall name the CITY as additional insured.  
Coverage shall include CONTRACTOR, sub-consultants, and anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by either.  The comprehensive general liability shall be combined 
single limit for broad form liability property damage and bodily injury, of at least 
$1,000,000.00 and shall increase such limits to the limits of Oregon Tort Claims Act 
if Act’s limits are increased.  Such insurance shall not be canceled or its limits of 
liability reduced without thirty (30) days prior notice to City.  A copy of an insurance 
certificate in a form satisfactory to City certifying the issuance of such insurance shall 
be furnished to City.  

 
18.  WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 
 

The Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this 
Agreement are either subject employers under the Oregon Workers' Compensation Law 
and shall comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers' 
compensation coverage for all their subject workers, or are employers that are exempt 
under ORS 656.126. 

 
19. LABORERS AND MATERIALMEN, CONTRIBUTIONS TO INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT 

FUND, LIENS AND WITHHOLDING TAXES 
 

Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying contractor 
labor or material for the prosecution of the work provided for this contract. 

 
Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from 
contractor or any subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 



Page 6 of 7 

Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state, 
county, school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on 
account of any labor or material furnished. 

 
Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees 
pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 
20. PAYMENT OF CLAIMS BY PUBLIC OFFICERS 
 

If the contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for 
labor or services furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor by any person in 
connection with the public contract as such claim becomes due, the proper officer or 
officers representing the municipality may pay such claim to the person furnishing the 
labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to 
become due the contractor by reason of such contract. 
 
The payment of a claim in the manner here authorized shall not relieve the contractor 
or the contractor’s surety from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims.   

 
21. PAYMENT OF MEDICAL CARE 
 

Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, 
association or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or other 
needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury to the employees of such 
contractor, of all sums which the contractor agrees to pay for such services and all 
moneys and sums which the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of 
employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or 
paying for such service.   

 
22. OVERTIME 
 

Consultant’s employees shall be paid for overtime work performed under this contract in 
accordance with ORS 653.010 to 653.261 and the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 
U.S.C. sections 201 to 209). 
 

23. STANDARD OF CARE 
 

The standard of care applicable to CONTRACTOR’S services will be the degree of skill 
and diligence normally employed by a professional performing the same or similar 
services at the time CONTRACTOR’S services are performed.  CONTRACTOR will re-
perform any services not meeting this standard without additional compensation. 

 
24. OCCUPATIONAL TAX 
 

CONTRACTOR shall pay the City of Astoria Occupational Tax as provided in Astoria 
Code Sections 8.000 to 8.035. 

 



Page 7 of 7 

25. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 

This contract gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than the CITY and 
CONTRACTOR and has no third party beneficiaries. 

 
26. SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL 
 

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired 
thereby.  Limitations of liability shall survive termination of this Agreement for any cause. 

 
27. NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY  
 

It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person  shall be denied the benefits of 
or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, service, or activity on the 
grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity I expression. The City of Astoria also requires its 
contractors and grantees to comply with this policy. 

 
28. COMPLETE CONTRACT 
 

This Contract and its referenced attachments constitute the complete contract between 
CITY and CONTRACTOR and supersedes all prior written or oral discussions or 
agreements.  CONTRACTOR services are defined solely by this Contract and its 
attachments and not by any other contract or agreement that may be associated with this 
Contract. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement the day and year 
first written above. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: BY: ________________________________ 
 Mayor Date 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney BY: ________________________________ 
 City Manager Date 
 
 
 
 
 ABC TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES, INC. 
 
 
 BY: ______________________________ 
 Contractor Date 
 



Office: 503.324.0198  abc4transcription@yahoo.com  Mobile: 503.310.3482 
 

 EXHIBIT A 
 

 
ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 

 
 

 
 

Transcription Services Proposal 
 
The following is ABC Transcription’s 2016-17 bid proposal tailored to the transcription 
services requested by the City of Astoria.   
 
Transcription Services: 
Proposed base transcription rates given the noted business day turnaround times and a 
meeting to transcript preparation ratio of approximately five hours to one hour (5:1) of 
meeting time (see additional considerations below): 

 
City Council: 12 business days    $39 per labor hour 

 
Planning Commission/Library and other Boards:  $39 per labor hour 

12+ business days  
 

Engineering Precons/Preapplications (verbatim work):  $37 per labor hour 
(4:1 ratio; deadline as determined by staff) 

 
Turnaround time periods begin the day the meeting’s audio is available. Audio received 
after 12 pm (PST), results in the day count starting the next business day. 

 
 
Optional Services or Considerations:    Add to base transcription rate: 

 
Meetings longer than 3 hours:     $2 
 
Poor Audio Quality      $2 
 
Turnaround Time   
 Less than 5 business days    $10 

6 to 11 business days    $4 
 

Added rates for Technical Content and Editing/Rewriting only apply to that specific portion 
of the meeting. 

 
Technical content:      $2 
 Code rewrites, transportation, etc. 
 
Editing/Rewriting:      $4 

Identify/insert pronouns, reword for better flow, more concise content, polished 
grammatical structure, etc. 

 



Office: 503.324.0198  abc4transcription@yahoo.com  Mobile: 503.310.3482 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Supplemental Information 

 
• ABC Transcription does not outsource any work offshore and only contracts with 

U.S. citizens. 
 

• As an Oregon Certified Tier-1 Emerging Small Business (ESB), having ABC 
Transcription as your transcription service provider can help the City better meet 
possible quota requirements. 

 
• With more than 10 years’ experience transcribing public meetings in accordance with 

public records law, ABC Transcription is well acquainted with procedures regarding 
the public record. ABC Transcription also understands the importance of nuances 
and tone within meetings, as well as maintaining a clear record. 

 
• ABC works hard to ensure speakers sound their best while maintaining accuracy for 

the record. Our clients trust us to provide accurate, on time transcripts. 
 
• Having served the City of Astoria since 2010, ABC Transcription is well acquainted with 

City Staff and its Council and Commission members. ABC is also very familiar with the 
various upcoming projects in the City, including the library renovation and key issues like 
affordable housing. 

 
References and sample transcripts are available upon request. 

 
 

ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 
Company Profile 

 
Contact:  Paula Pinyerd, President 

Address: 42340 NW Depot St, Banks, OR  97106 

Phone: 503-324-0198   

Mobile:  503-310-3482 

Email: abc4transcription@yahoo.com 

EIN:   #26-3741559     
ESB Certification: #5336 
Certificate of Insurance: Available upon request 
 

 
 



































































555 30th Street, Astoria Oregon 97103 
Patrol (503) 338-6411 Records (503) 338-6433 Fax (503) 325-4897 

 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 

June 1, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: ERIC HALVERSON, DEPUTY CHIEF 
 
SUBJECT: LICENSE RECOMMENDATION WORKMANS IRISH PUB  
 
Astoria Police have conducted a thorough investigation into the applicant and proposed 
licensed premise related to this application.  Based on this investigation, detailed below, 
Astoria Police recommend an unfavorable recommendation for the Applicant Erica 
Miltenberger and the outlet Workmans Irish Pub.  
 
Where recently, (on a separate application) the Police Department recommended no action 
or approval because the finding would have no affect on a change of privileges, In this case, 
with a new applicant and a substantial number of statutory reasons to recommend a denial 
the Department believes that the correct action is to find unfavorably and that this action will 
have significant impact on the OLCC consideration.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
1 BACKGROUND 
On 04/05/2016 staff was requested to complete an investigation regarding an application for 
full on-premise sales commercial establishment / new outlet license for Workmans Irish Pub, 
218 W. Marine Dr. Astoria OR 97103. The application indicates that business hours will be 
3:00 P.M. to 2:30 AM Sunday through Saturday.  On 05/12/2016 Staff received amended 
times.  The amended hours for the business are from 3:00 P.M. – 12:00 A.M. Sunday 
through Thursday and 3:00 P.M – 1:00 A.M. Friday and Saturday.  Additionally the applicant 
added an outdoor area to the application with hours from 3:00 P.M. – 10:00 P.M. Sunday 
through Saturday.  Entertainment will include live music, DJ music, karaoke, coin operated 
games and pool tables.  Live or DJ music will occur Wednesday through Friday from 5 PM 
until closing.  Later staff received amended entertainment hours which are 6:00 P.M. - 9:00 
P.M on Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday.  
 
During staff’s preliminary investigation several issues of concern were found.  These issues 
include the following things cited in ORS 471.313 Grounds for refusing to issue license 
OLCC.  Due to the amount of follow up needed and the lack of access to the OLCC 
inspector, who was out of the area until 04/26/2016, a request for an extension of 45 days 
was made for additional time to investigate the applicant. 
  



2 

 
On 05/12/2016 Chief Johnston and Deputy Chief Halverson met with applicant Erica 
Miltenberger to discuss findings and questions that arose during the investigation.  Staff has 
indicated Miltenberger’s responses to questions by listing “applicant response” following 
each section discussed.   
 
Based upon the investigation, staff is recommending an unfavorable recommendation to 
OLCC.  The applicant is aware that staff will be recommending an unfavorable 
recommendation by Council; however she has been advised that the Council is the final 
decision maker for such a recommendation.   
 
2 CRITERIA 
This memorandum is organized using Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 471.313 Grounds 
for refusing to issue license OLCC.  Each bullet point refers to a subsection of ORS 
471.313 While these issues are not binding on Council’s decision, they reflect a legal 
standard that OLCC considers in refusing to issue a liquor license, and which are also 
pertinent to the character of the applicant, applicant’s history, and premise history for current 
or previous alcohol dispensing establishments the applicant has operated in the past.  All of 
these issues are relevant to the consideration of the council.  ORS 471.313 establishes 
criteria to be considered by OLCC for license refusal.  Staff will only address the sub 
sections of the ORS which are relevant to this applicant.  A copy of the ORS is attached at 
the end of this document for review.    
 
2A FALSE STATEMENT 
471.430(4)(b) “That the applicant has made several false statements to the commission” 
These statements include: 

1. In a previous OLCC Liquor License Application applicant failed to disclose a previous 
DUII Diversion.  

2. In the current OLCC Liquor License Application including:  
(a) Failure to disclose previous conviction by OLCC definition 
(b) Failure to provide accurate information regarding residency  
(c) Failure to disclose a previously used surname  

 
This information, if true, would indicate that the applicant may have engaged in the crime of 
false swearing under ORS 162.075.  
 
Explanation  
(1) In an application filed to obtain the OLCC License for Workmans Irish Pub  
 111 Main Ave. Tillamook OR on 10/15/2014 question 23, Have you ever been in a 

drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon or any other state?  (A diversion 
program is where you are required, usually by the court or another government 
agency, to complete certain requirements in place of being convicted of a drug 
or alcohol-related offense.)  Miltenberger marked as “no”.   

 
 In the application filed to obtain an OLCC License for Workmans Irish Pub 218 W. 

Marine Dr. Astoria OR 97103, Miltenberger indicated on question 23 that “yes” “I 
completed a diversion program in 2009”.  For the purposes of this background staff 



3 

ran a criminal history check on Miltenberger, who indicated on question 4 of the 
application  Other names used (maiden, other) that her only other name used was 
that of Mote.  Miltenberger did not come up with any criminal history under either 
name, which staff would expect to see for a person who completed a diversion 
program.  Staff consulted with Tillamook OLCC Inspector Chris Nolte who initially 
indicated Miltenberger did not disclose having completed a diversion program.  Staff 
since obtained a copy of the application and independently verified this information.  
The application for the Tillamook establishment was filed after 2009 when 
Miltenberger indicates that she did take a diversion.  The application also allows for 
Miltenberger to indicate that she is “unsure” if for some reason she is not clear about 
the outcome. 

 
 Staff used another database to run Miltenberger and found that she also previously 

used the last name of Gerlach.  Staff found that Miltenberger did have a criminal 
history under the name of Gerlach.  Gerlach had been arrested in 2009 for DUII in 
Beaverton Oregon, and that the case was dismissed in 2010 as a result of diversion.   

 
Applicant Response 

Miltenberger told Halverson and Johnston she “flew” through the applications.  
Miltenberger indicated she did not know she hadn’t listed the diversion in the 
previous two applications (Kilt and Workmans Tillamook).   

 
(2a) Failure to disclose previous conviction by OLCC definition. 
 In the application for the Astoria business, on Question 19 of the OLCC application,  

In the past 12 years have you been convicted (“convicted”) includes paying a 
fine’ in Oregon or any other state of a misdemeanor or a felony?  Miltenberger 
indicated “no”.  In order for a person to qualify for a DUII diversion, they must first 
plead guilty or no contest and pay fines.  Upon successful completion of the diversion 
program the charge is dismissed.  Under the OLCC definition of “convicted” 
Miltenberger made a false statement in her application.   

 
Applicant Response 

Miltenberger told staff she didn’t know that the diversion qualified as a “conviction”.  
Staff explained the application actually indicates the definition for conviction.   

 
(2b) Failure to provide accurate information regarding residency. 
 On question 11 of the OLCC application, Residence Address  Miltenberger listed an 

address of residence at 3969 F Circle Washougal Washington.  According to 
Sergeant Bomar of the Tillamook Police Department, the applicant’s vehicles still 
display Washington State license plates, however the applicant is residing at 2516 3rd 
St. Tillamook Oregon 97141.  The applicant currently maintains a Washington 
Driver’s License  The applicant’s children are enrolled in Tillamook Oregon Schools 
as resident children.  ORS 803.200 establishes criteria for determining residency.  
Per the statute, A person is a resident of this state for purposes of titling and 
registering vehicles if the person engages in any gainful employment in this state or 
takes any action to indicate the acquiring of the residence in this state during the 
period of sojourn in this state by (a) remaining in this state for a consecutive period of 
six months or more regardless of the domicile of the person.  (b) Placing children in a 



4 

public school without payment of nonresident tuition fees.  Staff asked Bomar to 
check with Tillamook schools to determine whether Miltenberger’s children are 
registered in an Oregon school as Oregon resident children.  Based upon this 
information the applicant has made false statements to the commission regarding her 
residency and is in violation of several Oregon State Laws pertaining to residency 
including vehicle registration and individual driver’s licensing.  The applicant has also 
failed to pay non-resident tuition fees from which the applicant has gained a financial 
benefit.   

 
Applicant Response 

Miltenberger told staff she and her husband have been going back and forth between 
Tillamook and Washougal Washington.  Miltenberger said her family recently 
purchased a house in Tillamook and they are renting out their home in Washington.  
Miltenberger said she did not realize she was out of compliance with registration and 
licensing laws of Oregon.  Miltenberger said that her husband had already started 
changing over to Oregon license.  Miltenberger told staff that they had to order birth 
certificates which delayed the process.   

 
Miltenberger told staff she did have her kids enrolled as Oregon resident students 
and she did not realize that out of state tuition was required for out of state children.  
Miltenberger doesn’t think the school inquired about this when enrolling her children.  
(Staff consulted with Astoria School District Superintendant who indicated that there 
is no formal procedure statewide for enrollment, however Astoria inquires because it 
is on the state border and therefore it is more likely that non-resident students might 
enroll in Astoria Schools.  The tuition is also set by the district.  Astoria sets theirs at 
$5000.00.)   

 
(2c) Failure to disclose a previously used surname  

Miltenberger failed to provide the previously used Surname of Gerlach under which 
several records were located that could be interpreted as relevant grounds for OLCC 
to refuse to issue a liquor license.  There will be additional information regarding this 
later in this memorandum.   

 
Applicant Response  

Miltenberger did not realize she hadn’t provided all of her names and she didn’t 
realize that it was important.  Miltenberger told staff that she did not intentionally omit 
her previous names to hide anything.   

 
2B  RECORD OF COMPLIANCE 
 
471.313(4)(g) That the applicant did not have a good record of compliance with the 

alcoholic liquor laws of this State and the rules of the Commission when previously 
licensed. 
 

1. Staff has received 26 police reports from City of Tillamook Police Department for 
calls involving or related to Workmans Irish Pub located at 111 Main Ave. in 
Tillamook Oregon which is operated by the same applicant.  This issue dovetails with 
premise history which will be discussed further later in this memorandum.   



5 

 
2. Staff  received reports from Oregon Liquor Control Commission regarding OLCC 

violations at establishments, previously or currently operated by applicant 
Miltenberger.   

 
Applicant Response 

This will be discussed in conjunction with the premise history further in the 
memorandum.   

 
Explanation 
 
OLCC Violations Reported 

On October 30, 2014 Miltenberger’s husband was contacted by OLCC in regard to a 
complaint about violation of advertising rules.  Miltenberger’s husband was identified 
in the inspectors report as the licensee.  Miltenberger’s husband advised that he was 
unaware of the advertising violation.  Miltenberger was provided with education and 
no further action was taken regarding the matter.   

 
On February 18, 2015 Workmans Irish Pub Tillamook, bartender failed to verify the 
age of an OLCC Minor Decoy and served him an alcoholic beverage.   
 
On August 20, 2015 Miltenberger, operating under applicant name Woodstock Lass 
LLC and business name KILT, was given a letter of reprimand by OLCC following the 
receipt of two OLCC violations for allowing open containers to be removed from the 
premises.  The two violations occurred within 8 days of one another and in both 
instances Miltenberger was on site.  The violations occurred when patrons took open 
containers onto a patio area that had not been licensed.  Applicant’s license was 
suspended for 14 days. 
 

2C SERIOUS AND PERSISTANT PROBLEMS 
ORS 471.313(5) That there is a history of serious and persistent problems involving 
disturbances, lewd or unlawful activities or noise either in the premises proposed to 
be licensed or involving patrons of the establishment in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises, if the activities in the immediate vicinity of the premises are related to the 
sale or service of alcohol under the exercise of the license privilege. Behavior which 
is grounds for refusal of a license under this section, where so related to the sale or 
service of alcohol, includes, but is not limited to obtrusive or excessive noise, music 
or sound vibrations; public drunkenness; fights; altercations; harassment; unlawful 
drug sales; alcohol or related litter; trespassing on private property; and public 
urination. Histories from premises currently or previously operated by the applicant 
may be considered when reasonable inference may be made that similar activities 
will occur as to the premises proposed to be licensed. The applicant may overcome 
the history by showing that the problems are not serious or persistent or that the 
applicant demonstrates a willingness and ability to control adequately the premises 
proposed to be licensed and patrons behavior in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises which is related to the licensee’s sale or service of alcohol under the 
licensee’s exercise of the license privilege. 

 



6 

CALL HISTORY WORKMANS IRISH PUB TILLAMOOK  
Staff requested Tillamook Police Department provide the City with calls to Workmans Irish 
Pub located at 111 Main St. Tillamook Oregon, because applicant Miltenberger operates 
that establishment and reasonable inference can be made that similar activities will occur at 
the premises proposed to be licensed.  The reports are as follows:  
 
10/29/2014 Warrant Arrest / Not related to any call or behavior at the bar.   
 
11/28/2014   Probation Violation / Not related to any call but discovered at the bar. 
 
12/20/2014 Bar Fight /  Officers were in the area regarding a bar fight at Workmans Irish 

Pub in which one involved individual ran away.  While in the vicinity a deputy 
radioed about another fight in front of the bar.  Two individuals were arrested 
by deputies. 

 
02/08/2015   Bar Fight / Incident started inside the bar and ended up outside. Case sent to 

D.A. for review of charges related to harassment and disorderly conduct.  
 
02/28/2015   Unwanted person / Fired Employee called in by bar staff / Trespassed by 

Tillamook Police Department.  
 
02/28/2016   Criminal Mischief / Knocked over flowerpot next in front of business next to 

Workmans Irish Pub.  Business owner reports that he regularly finds trash, 
debris, vomit or other substances in front of his business, the Workmans Irish 
Pub and in the parking lot of the Rodeo Steakhouse on Saturday and Sunday 
mornings.  The business owner reported he has tried to work with the 
applicant and her husband with no success.  Business owner reported he 
received a call from the owner of Rodeo Steakhouse reporting on this same 
morning that he found trash and broken beer bottles in his parking lot.   

 
03/01/2015   Criminal Mischief - Officers contacted by employees of Rodeo Steakhouse 

next to Workmans Irish Pub reporting that they were going to start roping off 
their parking lot due to persistent discoveries of vomit, trash, beer cans and 
bottles in their parking lot that they have to clean up frequently.  Neighboring 
business Sunset Tans Salon employee reported that she regularly has to 
clean up trash, vomit and cigarette butts all the time.  Officer observed 
cigarette butts all over the sidewalk and street.  

 
03/14/2015   Disturbance - Officer driving by observed a disturbance.  A very large 

intoxicated man reported that he was kicked out of Workmans Irish Pub 
earlier.  The man was yelling at a crowd in front of the Workmans Irish Pub 
including the applicant, and members of the crowd were yelling back at the 
man.  The man was taken into custody for detox.  The man reported he was 
over served and the bar was giving him four drinks at once then kicked him out 
when someone tried to fight him.  

 
03/17/2015   Harassment/Criminal Mischief - Officer was dispatched to a disturbance at 

Workmans Irish Pub where “preachers” were outside.  A pub patron reportedly 



7 

pushed one of the preachers 3 times then ripped a camera off of his shoulder 
damaging the camera.  Suspect cited and released for Harassment and 
Criminal Mischief.  

 
03/25/2015   Harassment/Criminal Mischief - Officer was dispatched to a disturbance at 

Workmans Irish Pub where “preachers” were outside.  A man reportedly came 
up and was yelling at one of the preachers then ripped a camera off of his 
shoulder and threw it on the ground.  The “preachers” then followed the man 
and a female he was with to their vehicle and reported the man tried to run 
them over.  Suspects were later contacted and admitted damaging the camera 
following aggressive proselytizing by the “preachers”.  Case sent to D.A. for 
review.   

 
03/27/2015   Alcohol related litter - Officer dispatched to neighboring business that reported 

a mess left by Workmans Irish Pub Patrons.  Officer verified four “piles of 
vomit”, a glass from the pub and “countless” cigarette butts.  Officer also 
discovered a sandwich board from the pub that stated “Topless Bartenders” 
and “Free Beer.”  Damage was noted to a parking post in a shared parking lot 
for both businesses.  

 
05/20/2015   Disturbance - Officer in the area observed a disturbance outside Workmans 

Irish Pub involving two males in a shoving match.  One male was visibly 
intoxicated, slurring his words and “mostly incoherent”.  One bar patron had 
reportedly walked the visibly intoxicated male outside after he became upset 
about how he perceived a female inside the bar was being treated. He was not 
asked to leave the bar per the bartender, who also witnessed what she thought 
was a fight outside.  The bartender said she saw the police were on scene.   

 
05/22/2015   Disturbance - Officer dispatched to Workmans Irish Pub for a disturbance.  On 

arrival in the area a visibly intoxicated female began trying to argue with the 
officer.  The officer went into Workmans Irish Pub looking for the reported 
disturbance. The same female went into the bar and began arguing with the 
bartender.  The female was advised to leave the bar or go to jail.  The female 
continued her behavior outside the bar and continued on an ongoing basis.  
The officer was dispatched back to the bar when the female again returned to 
argue with the bartender.  The female was not arrested.   

 
05/24/2015   Ordinance Violation - Large amount of cardboard boxes outside the adjacent 

door to Workmans Irish Pub.  Cigarette butts on the sidewalk.   
 
06/03/2015   Suspicious Circumstances - Officer dispatched to an open front door at 

Workmans Irish Pub.  Bar manager reported she forgot to close the door.  Per 
Officer’s report alcohol inventory was readily available if entry had been made.   

 
06/06/2015   Disturbance - Officer had just left a bar check at Workmans Irish Pub when he 

saw a crowd of people spill into the street.  The Officer observed three people 
tussling in the street.  One subject was described as highly intoxicated.  The 
officer described being approached by approximately 10 people all of whom he 



8 

noted were visibly intoxicated came up and were telling variations of what had 
happened.   

 
06/13/2015   Disorderly Conduct/Harassment- Officer driving by Workmans Irish Pub 

observed several males and females shoving each other and shouting at each 
other.  A male identified as trying to fight everyone, was out with his wife who 
was trying to get him to leave.  The wife was described as so intoxicated she 
barely spoke and was leaning against a wall throughout most of the officer’s 
contact.  Another female trying to get the male suspect to leave was also visibly 
intoxicated with a strong odor of alcohol, red watery eyes, staggering and 
slurring her words.  The male suspect was also visibly intoxicated.  The male 
suspect reported that he was attacked by six men inside the bar.  The Officer 
made contact inside the bar and witnesses reported that the male suspect was 
walking up to people in the bar grabbing them and trying to fight.  The 
applicant’s husband asked the officer if he needed to make a report and stated 
that many of these people drink elsewhere then come to Workmans Irish Bar.  
During the officer’s investigation a patron asked him why he didn’t just shut the 
bar down.  The male suspect was arrested after trying to flick blood into the 
faces of two officers.   

 
06/27/2015   Disturbance/Service to visibly intoxicated person - Officer driving by Workmans 

Irish Pub observed a “heavily intoxicated” male fall in front of the bar then 
stagger inside.  The Officer went to check that the man would not be served 
and when he walked in the same subject was holding two shots that he was 
drinking.  The bartender was contacted and the bartender announced to 
patrons they were done serving for the evening.  30 minutes later a Deputy 
radioed that there was a disturbance in front of Workmans Irish Pub.  Two 
heavily intoxicated sisters reported that one of them had been punched in the 
face.  Other subjects reported a shoving match and no assault.   

 
09/30/2015   Disturbance/Officer dispatched to Workmans Irish Pub for a disturbance.  A 

male subject was pointed out by a group of customers.  The subject was 
described as stumbling about.  He had been in the pub and was asked to leave 
but created a disturbance and the bartender called for police.   

 
10/13/2015   Disturbance/Disorderly Conduct/Interfering with a fire fighter - Officer 

dispatched to Workmans Irish Pub for a report of a female unconscious and 
breathing.  The female’s boyfriend was visibly intoxicated, uncooperative and 
attempting to interfere with medical personnel who were trying to provide aid to 
his girlfriend.  The male was arrested for interfering with a fire fighter and 
disorderly conduct.   

 
10/23/2015   Harassment - Officer dispatched to a report of a possible drunk driver leaving 

the Rodeo Restaurant.  Officer was flagged down by an intoxicated male who 
indicated that his girlfriend was inside the bar (Workmans Irish Pub) with two 
intoxicated males and they were about to drive drunk.  The male at one point 
got into an argument with his girlfriend and one of the males in the Rodeo 
parking lot.  The male made numerous additional calls alleging harassment 



9 

inside of and outside of the Workmans Irish Pub.  A case was forwarded to the 
D.A.’s Office for Misuse of 911.  The male was later interviewed and claimed 
he was drinking at the Rodeo.   

 
01/29/2016   Court Violation / No additional information regarding any knowledge or 

wrongdoing by Workmans Irish Pub.   
 
01/29/2016.. Ordinance Violation - Neighboring business complaint that Workmans Irish Pub 

is leaving garbage cans without lids on the sidewalk.  A letter was sent to 
applicant’s husband about abating the nuisance.   

 
02/22/2016   Disturbance - Applicant’s husband and neighboring business owner became 

involved in a physical altercation after neighboring business owner reportedly 
spit on the applicant’s husband’s truck.  The neighboring business owner 
denied spitting on the truck and claimed he was pushed to the ground by 
applicant’s husband.  Applicant was present during this incident and both 
parties called 911 to report it.   

 
03/06/2016   Assault/Disorderly conduct - Officer was dispatched to a disturbance outside 

Workmans Irish Pub.  On arrival an intoxicated male subject was lying in the 
street starting to come to.  A witness said the victim threw a bottle breaking it in 
the street.  People began yelling at the male for breaking the bottle when an 
unidentified male “sucker punched” the victim who then fell striking his head on 
the pavement and became unconscious.  The victim was diagnosed at the 
hospital with a fractured indented maxillary sinus and zygomatic bone and had 
a laceration on the back of his head.  The suspect was later identified by a bar 
employee who was off duty but present at the time of the assault.  The suspect 
was arrested for assault.   

 
03/19/2016   Disturbance / Harassment / Disorderly Conduct - Officer witnessed a female 

walk away from a cab and punch a man in the mouth.  The woman and man 
were in a relationship for 10 years and the woman was mad the man did not 
want to leave so she struck him.   

 
Additional Reports Obtained 05/12/2016 
 
03/20/2016   Contact / Officer was on patrol and located a crowd that was not fighting yet but 

may be soon.  The officer requested additional units.  (There is no additional 
information on the outcome) 

 
04/24/2016   Assault / Applicant was the caller.  Report indicates that a male was assaulted 

by being head butted.  The victim had minor injuries and was transported to the 
emergency room.  (There is no additional information on the outcome).   

 
  



10 

KILT IRISH PUB / PORTLAND  
05/01/2015   Disturbance -  Neighbor to business reported verbal threat, fighting, shouting / 

yelling and pushing / shoving in a report he filed with OLCC regarding Kilt Irish 
Pub.  The complainant’s written report indicated that he heard yelling outside 
that went on for 10-15 minutes and he saw several of his neighbors outside 
houses observing the incident.  Patrons of KILT reportedly were upset that their 
vehicles had been towed and were yelling at owners and customers of two 
other businesses in the same building.  The patrons reportedly ripped down 
signage on the side of the building and smashed the mirror of a truck owned by 
one of the business owners.  KILT employees were on scene trying to diffuse 
the situation.  Neighbors then tried to intervene and were pushed to the ground.  
Portland Police arrived and reportedly arrested the men as neighbors and 
business owners began driving the subjects toward Woodstock Street.   

 
05/10/2015  Disturbance  00:00 – 01:00 -Neighbor to business reported shouting / yelling.  

In the report filed by the neighbor he indicated that bar customers were drinking 
and talking loudly at the sidewalk tables outside the business.  (note that KILT 
did not have a license for patrons to remove drinks to the outside area of the 
bar) 

 
05/10/2015  Disturbance / Public Sex  02:00 – 02:10 - Neighbor to business reported loud 

music from the business and while investigating discovered KILT patrons 
having sex in the parking lot behind the business.  Patrons reportedly admitted 
coming from the KILT.   

 
Applicant Response  

Miltenberger described Tillamook as a rough area.  Miltenberger said that not only 
their establishment but other establishments have lots of fights.  Miltenberger said 
that there has not been a fight inside of the bar in Tillamook in over a year.  
Miltenberger said that she has trained her staff to cut people off.  Miltenberger said 
that ½ of the bar’s clientele have been “86’d” from the bar.  Miltenberger said 
problems persist because previously excluded patrons will still hang out, outside the 
bar, and the local police say they cannot move them from the city sidewalk.   
 
Miltenberger told me that they are looking at closing the bar in Tillamook earlier to 
help limit some of the problems.  Miltenberger said that one of the reasons they have 
had so many problems is because people become intoxicated at other 
establishments and then come to Workmans because it is open later.   

 
Staff asked Miltenberger about issues with the neighboring businesses.  Miltenberger 
said  the neighbor with the tanning salon has a problem with them.  Miltenberger said 
that he blows cigarette butts over in front of the door to Workmans.  Miltenberger said 
she has instructed her staff to sweep up the sidewalks in front of the businesses 
including the neighboring business to try and eliminate some of the problems.   

 
Miltenberger said regarding the OLCC violations at the KILT they involved a neighbor 
who repeatedly called.  With regard to the serving of alcohol outside, she was told by 
OLCC to get a sidewalk permit from the city and she didn’t realize she needed one 



11 

from OLCC.  Miltenberger said that the OLCC representative failed to tell her this and 
apologized.  Miltenberger said she has emails which support this.  Staff asked 
Miltenberger to provide them as mitigating information.  Miltenberger provided the 
email which was cut off and the correspondence incomplete.  Staff located the same 
complete email in paperwork obtained from OLCC.  The issue dealing with service 
outside, dated 04/13/2015 read “ Also, I apologize.  I don’t recall if we discussed the 
outdoor area.  If you are seeking an outdoor area, I will need a specific control plan 
and a copy of the sidewalk café permit from the City of Portland.  If you are not 
looking at having an outdoor area at this time, please let me know and I will reflect 
that in the file.”  Staff noted that the two violations occurred on 05/26/2015, 
06/03/2015 and 06/09/2015.   

 
Miltenberger told me that part of the reason they chose the location of the Astoria 
Workmans Irish Pub is because it is not in downtown and is less likely to have 
problems from patrons going from one establishment to another.   

 
2D  FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
ORS 471.313(4)(i) Is not possessed of or has not demonstrated financial responsibility 
sufficient to adequately meet the requirements of the business proposed to be licensed. 

 
During the background check staff located information that there were multiple court 
judgments against Miltenberger, under the name Erica Gerlach as follows:  
 
08/30/2012 there is unsatisfied judgments against Erica Gerlach in the amount of 
$9080.00, $481.00, and $707.00.  The monetary award was to Meyer Sign Co. of 
Oregon.  The total unsatisfied judgment for this suit was $10,268.00.   
 
On 03/24/2010 there is unsatisfied judgments against Erica Gerlach in the amount of 
$151.50, $85.00 and $3475.00.  The monetary award was to Nancy Bender.  The 
total unsatisfied judgment for this suit was $3711.50.   
 
On 07/06/2016, 08/05/2015, 11/02/2010, there are unsatisfied judgments against 
Erica Gerlach and Chris Gerlach in the amount of $163.00, $60.00, $110.00, $360.00 
and $224.00.  The monetary award was to Rental Management Services.  The total 
unsatisfied judgment for these suits was $917.00.   
 
On 07/01/2011 Encompass Property Management filed a forcible entry detainer 
against Erica Gerlach and Chris Gerlach.  
 
On 02/27/2012 Kathryn Conrow filed for a forcible entry detainer and a small claims 
contract against Erica Gerlach and Chris Gerlach.   
 
On 04/04/2012 Columbia Collection Services filed a small claims contract against 
Erica and Chris Gerlach.   
 

  



12 

Applicant Response  
Miltenberger told staff she claimed Bankruptcy in 2012.  Miltenberger said the debts 
were handled by the declaration of bankruptcy.  Miltenberger said the debts were 
related to a business she owned called Portland Bagel Company.   

 
3 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
For the purposes of the memorandum, staff ran a business registry search for registered 
Oregon Business in the name of Oregon Lass LLC.  There was an administrative dissolution 
of the business on 12/03/2015.  Staff discussed this with OLCC on 05/04/2016, who advised 
that they would notify the applicant since they could not issue a license to a nonexistent 
applicant.  Staff found that on 05/04/2016 the business was reinstated.   
 
 
Staff reviewed Miltenberger’s Liquor License application for KILT and found on question 23, 
Have you ever been in a drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon or any other 
state?  (A diversion program is where you are required, usually by the court or 
another government agency, to complete certain requirements in place of being 
convicted of a drug or alcohol-related offense.)  Miltenberger marked “no”.  The 
application was filed in 2015 after Miltenberger took a diversion for DUII in 2009.   
 
Staff also noted that Miltenberger failed to disclose any previously used surnames marking 
“N/A” on the application.   
 
Miltenberger stated that she is a rule follower and she is trying to focus more on a restaurant 
atmosphere than a bar atmosphere.  Miltenberger said she wants Workmans Irish Pub in 
Astoria to be family friendly with the business being “kid friendly” until 9:00 P.M.   
 
Staff received information that the opening of Workmans Irish Pub was portrayed in much 
the same way, to the City of Tillamook.  A copy of Tillamook City Council Minutes was 
obtained and they indicate Tyson Miltenberger presented the information to the council 
although in the application, under question #15, Miltenberger indicated her spouse is Tyson 
Miltenberger.  Under question #16 If yes to #15, will this person work at or be involved 
in the operation or management of the business?  Miltenberger indicates “no.”   
 
According to the Tillamook City Council Minutes:  “OLCC License Application – Workmans 
Irish Pub – Tyson Miltenberger of Washougal, WA addressed the Council.  He explained 
that he and his wife had a dream to open a pub on the Oregon Coast.  As a Navy Seabee, 
his favorite place to go on shore was an Irish Pub.  They were inspired by the area and want 
to bring a taste of the Irish culture, as well as local bands or other events.  There will be a 
full menu for breakfast, lunch, and dinner.  Eight locals have been hired to work at the pub.  
The Name is historical, having been a “Workmans” many years ago.”   
 
During staff’s conversation with Miltenberger they inquired about why she would not have a 
manager, since she has had a substantial premise history.  Miltenberger said she likes to do 
it herself but she was looking at hiring a manager that works at Denny’s in Tillamook.  On 
05/16/2016 staff received an email from Miltenberger indicating that she failed to mention 
that she had hired two former managers, including the current manager for Port of Call and 



13 

the former manager of the Merry Time.  Miltenberger did not hire them to manage the 
business, but was demonstrating that she has hired experienced staff.   
 
Miltenberger was pleasant to speak with during the interview.  She became visibly emotional 
and concerned about an unfavorable recommendation.  Miltenberger was advised staff did 
not have the final say on whether or not she would receive a favorable or unfavorable 
recommendation.  Staff did indicate that she might want to come prepared by becoming 
current with Oregon Law and residency.  It was also suggested that she have a plan to 
present to council about what might mitigate her premise history.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based upon the staff investigation it is recommendation that Council provide an 
unfavorable recommendation to OLCC.  This is based upon all of the issues documented 
by subsection in ORS 471.313.  It is staff’s opinion that there is too substantial a negative 
premise history to reasonably infer a different result in an Astoria location.  
 

        
    Eric Halverson, Deputy Chief  
  



14 

§ 471.313¹  
Grounds for refusing to issue license 

The Oregon Liquor Control Commission may refuse to license any applicant under the provisions of this chapter if the 
commission has reasonable ground to believe any of the following to be true: 
(1)  That there are sufficient licensed premises in the locality set out in the application, or that the granting of a license 

in the locality set out in the application is not demanded by public interest or convenience. In determining whether 
there are sufficient licensed premises in the locality, the commission shall consider seasonal fluctuations in the 
population of the locality and shall ensure that there are adequate licensed premises to serve the needs of the 
locality during the peak seasons. 

(2)  That the applicant has not furnished an acceptable bond as required by ORS 471.311 (Application for license) or is 
not maintaining the insurance or bond required by ORS 471.168 (Certain licensees required to maintain liquor 
liability insurance or bond). 

(3)  That, except as allowed by ORS 471.392 (Definitions for ORS 471.392 to 471.400) to 471.400 (Exceptions to 
prohibition of financial assistance), any applicant to sell at retail for consumption on the premises has been 
financed or furnished with money or property by, or has any connection with, or is a manufacturer of, or wholesale 
dealer in, alcoholic liquor. 

(4)  That the applicant: 
(a)  Is in the habit of using alcoholic beverages, habit-forming drugs or controlled substances to excess. 
(b)  Has made false statements to the commission. 
(c)  Is incompetent or physically unable to carry on the management of the establishment proposed to be licensed. 
(d)  Has been convicted of violating a general or local law of this state or another state, or of violating a federal law, 

if the conviction is substantially related to the fitness and ability of the applicant to lawfully carry out activities 
under the license. 

(e)  Has maintained an insanitary establishment. 
(f)  Is not of good repute and moral character. 
(g)  Did not have a good record of compliance with the alcoholic liquor laws of this state and the rules of the 

commission when previously licensed. 
(h)  Is not the legitimate owner of the business proposed to be licensed, or other persons have ownership interests 

in the business which have not been disclosed. 
(i)  Is not possessed of or has not demonstrated financial responsibility sufficient to adequately meet the 

requirements of the business proposed to be licensed. 
(j)  Is unable to read or write the English language or to understand the laws of Oregon relating to alcoholic liquor 

or the rules of the commission. 
(5)  That there is a history of serious and persistent problems involving disturbances, lewd or unlawful activities or noise 

either in the premises proposed to be licensed or involving patrons of the establishment in the immediate vicinity 
of the premises if the activities in the immediate vicinity of the premises are related to the sale or service of alcohol 
under the exercise of the license privilege. Behavior which is grounds for refusal of a license under this section, 
where so related to the sale or service of alcohol, includes, but is not limited to obtrusive or excessive noise, music 
or sound vibrations; public drunkenness; fights; altercations; harassment; unlawful drug sales; alcohol or related 
litter; trespassing on private property; and public urination. Histories from premises currently or previously 
operated by the applicant may be considered when reasonable inference may be made that similar activities will 
occur as to the premises proposed to be licensed. The applicant may overcome the history by showing that the 
problems are not serious or persistent or that the applicant demonstrates a willingness and ability to control 
adequately the premises proposed to be licensed and patrons behavior in the immediate vicinity of the premises 
which is related to the licensees sale or service of alcohol under the licensees exercise of the license privilege. 
[Formerly 471.295; 2001 c.785 §1; 2011 c.165 §1; 2013 c.149 §1] 

 



15 

§ 471.313¹  
Grounds for refusing to issue license 

The Oregon Liquor Control Commission may refuse to license any applicant under the provisions of this chapter if the 
commission has reasonable ground to believe any of the following to be true: 
(1)  That there are sufficient licensed premises in the locality set out in the application, or that the granting of a license 

in the locality set out in the application is not demanded by public interest or convenience. In determining whether 
there are sufficient licensed premises in the locality, the commission shall consider seasonal fluctuations in the 
population of the locality and shall ensure that there are adequate licensed premises to serve the needs of the 
locality during the peak seasons. 

(2)  That the applicant has not furnished an acceptable bond as required by ORS 471.311 (Application for license) or is 
not maintaining the insurance or bond required by ORS 471.168 (Certain licensees required to maintain liquor 
liability insurance or bond). 

(3)  That, except as allowed by ORS 471.392 (Definitions for ORS 471.392 to 471.400) to 471.400 (Exceptions to 
prohibition of financial assistance), any applicant to sell at retail for consumption on the premises has been 
financed or furnished with money or property by, or has any connection with, or is a manufacturer of, or wholesale 
dealer in, alcoholic liquor. 

(4)  That the applicant: 
(a)  Is in the habit of using alcoholic beverages, habit-forming drugs or controlled substances to excess. 
(b)  Has made false statements to the commission. 
(c)  Is incompetent or physically unable to carry on the management of the establishment proposed to be licensed. 
(d)  Has been convicted of violating a general or local law of this state or another state, or of violating a federal law, 

if the conviction is substantially related to the fitness and ability of the applicant to lawfully carry out activities 
under the license. 

(e)  Has maintained an insanitary establishment. 
(f)  Is not of good repute and moral character. 
(g)  Did not have a good record of compliance with the alcoholic liquor laws of this state and the rules of the 

commission when previously licensed. 
(h)  Is not the legitimate owner of the business proposed to be licensed, or other persons have ownership interests 

in the business which have not been disclosed. 
(i)  Is not possessed of or has not demonstrated financial responsibility sufficient to adequately meet the 

requirements of the business proposed to be licensed. 
(j)  Is unable to read or write the English language or to understand the laws of Oregon relating to alcoholic liquor 

or the rules of the commission. 
(5)  That there is a history of serious and persistent problems involving disturbances, lewd or unlawful activities or noise 

either in the premises proposed to be licensed or involving patrons of the establishment in the immediate vicinity 
of the premises if the activities in the immediate vicinity of the premises are related to the sale or service of alcohol 
under the exercise of the license privilege. Behavior which is grounds for refusal of a license under this section, 
where so related to the sale or service of alcohol, includes, but is not limited to obtrusive or excessive noise, music 
or sound vibrations; public drunkenness; fights; altercations; harassment; unlawful drug sales; alcohol or related 
litter; trespassing on private property; and public urination. Histories from premises currently or previously 
operated by the applicant may be considered when reasonable inference may be made that similar activities will 
occur as to the premises proposed to be licensed. The applicant may overcome the history by showing that the 
problems are not serious or persistent or that the applicant demonstrates a willingness and ability to control 
adequately the premises proposed to be licensed and patrons behavior in the immediate vicinity of the premises 
which is related to the licensees sale or service of alcohol under the licensees exercise of the license privilege. 
[Formerly 471.295; 2001 c.785 §1; 2011 c.165 §1; 2013 c.149 §1] 

 

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.311
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.168
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.168
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.392
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.400
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.400
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/471.295





	CC Agenda 6-6-16
	CC Memo 6-6-16
	5(b) Dr. Harvey Awards
	6(a)(1) HLC Minutes 4-19-16
	6(a)(2) Library Board 4-26-16
	6(a)(3) Planning Commission 4-26-16
	6(a)(4) Planning Work Session 4-26-16
	6(b) ABC Transcription
	6(c) Fenton Tree Trim Permit
	6(d) Telecommunications Audit
	6(e) Solid Waste Resolution
	7(a) CMH Bonds
	7(b) State Shared Revenues
	7(c) Budget Adoption
	7(d) Workmans Pub Application
	7(e) Paving Bid
	ADC Agenda 6-6-16
	ADC Memo 6-6-16
	5(a) ADC Uniontown Revitalization
	6(a) ADC Budget Adoption
	CC Agenda Memo 6-6-16 2.pdf
	CC Agenda 6-6-16.pdf
	             AGENDA
	           ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL






